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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Stylistically, Montgomery Hall is a manifestation of Bqaﬁx
Arts Classicism as it was interpreted particularly throughout

the southern states. The main block of the building is a three+t

story rectangular brick structure with full basement and an
attic beneath the hipped roof. Projecting wall planes form
corner offsets on all four elevations and a central pavilion on
the facade.

The pavilion is a tripartite composition which features
four engaged, stuccoed-brick Corinthian columns flanking three
bays at the second and third stories, supported by a podium at

the first story. The articulation of the pavilion breaks through

at roof level into a triangular pediment resting on abbreviated
clustered pilasters, centered with a circular window, and orna-
mented with stone lions couchant atop the extended horizontal
ends. The overdoor of the entrance is composed of a balustrade
upon a cornice supported by carved keystone and consoles. Cur-
vilinear cheek blocks with ornamental urns originally lined the
front steps, and a balustrade punctuated with urns at the four
corners originally bordered the roof, but both embellishments
have since been removed. Window openings in the pavilion are
arched on the first and third stories and flat on the second,
with the openings of the top two stories separated by stone
panels carved in an appropriately agricultural motif of fruit,
flowers, and foliage. The remaining windows on all four eleva-
tions are consistently treated, with flatheaded openings be-
neath bracketed stone lintels on the first three levels and
rounded openings surrounded by arched brick coursework on the
top story. Stone stringcourses band the building at the floor
divisions, and a stone cornice with acanthus-carved modillions
projects over a plain brick frieze.

A striking feature of the Montgomery Hall design is the
five-story apsidal wing centered on the rear elevation. The
apse roof terminates in a partially rounded lantern which con-
forms to the elongated plan of the wing and ties into the rear
slope of the main roof. The apse was especially designed to
provide space for a college library, with the central reading
room on the main (or second) floor open to the metal-coffered
ceiling of the lantern, and galleries for book stacks circling
the third and fourth floors. In 1939 the floors of the galler-
ies were extended and partitions installed in order to make
complete stories, but the original piers, moldings, and lantern
ceiling, although obscured, remain undisturbed. During the
1939 remodelling the interior of the rectangular block was
gutted from basement floor to roof and rebuilt, the architec-
tural firm in charge noting that the

...roof is supported by trusses and is framed
independently of the interior construction, and
except for a few rafter shores...is supported
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Constructed in 1902-3 on the central campus of Mississippi
Agricultural and Mechanical College (now Mississippi State Uni-
versity), Montgomery Hall represents the successful culmination
of early struggles in the development of the school's program
of agricultural education. The 1902-1903 college catalogue
announced that the new building was to be used by the agricul-.
ture, horticulture, veterinary surgery, biological, and rural
and civil engineering departments, as well as the library and
museum for which the apse of the building was specifically
designed. Until additional departmental buildings were con-
structed in ensuing years, Montgomery Hall was the focal center
of all academic activity in the agricultural sciences which cont
stituted the mainstay of the A. & M. College curriculum, and
the library remained in its first permanent home there until
1923, 1In the 1950's and 1960's, as academic departments pro-
liferated, Montgomery Hall served as the first home for studies
in Forestry, Psychology, Guidance Education, and Anthropology,
and the building continues to provide useful office and class-
room space for various University departments.

Erected twenty-five years after the founding of Mississippi
A. & M. College, the "Scientific Building" was constructed during
the energetic wave of expansion which John Crompton Hardy ini-
tiated when he became the third president of the college in
1900. Of existing campus buildings, only the Textile Building
(now Industrial Education), constructed in 1900, predates Mont-
gomery Hall. Minutes of the Board of Trustees of A. & M. Col-
lege dated April 23, 1902, named R. H. ﬁﬁnt of Chattanooga,
Tennessee, as architect for a new "Scientific Building." The
cost was limited to $40,000.00 and the architect's fee set at
five percent for "plans and superintendence<" Board minutes
of June 18, 1902, accepted the bid of McGe€e and Humphreys
(spelled Humphries on the cornerstone) of Jackson, Mississippi,
for a net contract price of $36,577.75. The sum did not in-
clude the cost of the wiring, plumbing, or heating.

Something of the pride the young college felt in the mod-
ernity of the new facility is deduced from a statement in the
college catalog for the 1902-1903 biennium that the "entire
rbuilding is to be heated with steam, equipped with electric
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7. Physical Appearance (continued)

entirely on the outside walls of the building,
so that the interior construction may be safely
removed entirely without disturbing the roof
construction.

8. Significance (continued)

lights, and have a complete system of plumbing." The May 8,
1903, minutes of the Board recorded that "Hunt reported work to
be substantially completed," and that W. H. Howard "severed con-
nection as superintendent." On November 25, 1903, the Board of
Trustees approved "payment of $3950.00 in architect's fees,
superintendence and labor" on the Scientific Building and the
infirmary which was under construction simultaneously.

The cornerstone of the Scientific Building must have been
laid with full Masonic rites, for it included the name of E. N.
Thomas, who was Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of the State in
1903, and the Masonic dating of A. L. 5903 (Year of Light, cal-
culated from 4,000 B. C.), as well as the A. D. dating of 1903.
Mr. Thomas was also a member of the state legislature at the
time and was elected speaker of the Mississippi House of Rep-
resentatives in 1904. The complete inscription reads:

J. C. Hardy, President
Building Committee

W. B. Montgomery A. T. Dent
T. L. Wainwright J. J. Coman
Jas. T. Harrison
E. N. Thomas Grand Master
A. L. 5903 A. D. 1903
R. H. Hunt McGee & Humphries
Architect Builders

The minutes of the Board of Trustees for November, 1903,
contain a motion to name the building then known as Scientific
Hall the W. B. Montgomery Agricultural Hall and to erect a suit-
able tablet. A bronze plaque was accordingly mounted on the
left wall of the entrance, with the following inscription:

(continued)
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8. Significance (continued)

MONTGOMERY AGRICULTURAL HALL
THIS BUILDING IS DEDICATED
TO THE MEMORY OF
WILLIAM BELL MONTGOMERY
FOR TWENTY-THREE YEARS
LOCAL TRUSTEE OF THE
MISSISSIPPI AGRICULTURAL & MECHANCIAL COLLEGE
HE GAVE VALUABLE SERVICE TO THE
AGRICULTURE OF MISSISSIPPI BY UNTIRING
EFFORT AS A TRUSTEE AND FAITHFUL WORK
AS A CITIZEN OF THE COMMONWEALTH

Montgomery Hall is historically significant as one of the
oldest and most focal buildings on the Mississippi State Uni-
versity campus. But as important as Montgomery Hall's his-
torical merits, is the building's position in the history of
architecture in Mississippi and regionally. As an anonymous
structure, Montgomery Hall provides an elaborate and interesting
example of the Beaux Arts Classicism which was popular nation-
wide at the turn of the century but was only in rare instances
applied to architecture in Mississippi. However, the identity
of the architect, "R. H. Hunt of Chattanooga, Tennessee," lends
even greater significance to Montgomery Hall.

Reuben Harrison Hunt (1862-1937) was a native of Elbert
County, Georgia, who moved to Chattanooga at the age of 20 to
enter the building trade. After studying architecture privately,
in 1886 he formed the R. H. Hunt Co., Architects, and, according
to the National Cyclopedia of American Biography, "became one of
the most widely known members of his profession in the South"
(Volume 28, p. 178).

The firm had its headquarters in Chattanooga and a sec-
ondary office in Dallas, Texas. In addition to many public,
religious, and academic buildings in Chattanooga and throughout
Tennessee, Hunt was responsible for structures in Texas, Oklahoma
North Carolina, Arkansas, Virginia, and Mississippi. In 1937,
Hunt's designs for the Chattanooga Post Office were included in
a travelling exhibition of representative and distinguished
buildings erected since 1918 in Great Britain and the United
States, sponsored jointly by the Royal Institute of Architects
and the American Institute of Architects.

(continued)
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In Mississippi, R. H. Hunt is known to have been the
architect for the City Hall in Yazoo City, the Chickasaw County
Courthouse in Houston (1911), the first buildings of Mississippi
Normal College (1912; now University of Southern Mississippi),
and the 1903 remodelling of the Lowndes County Courthouse in
Columbus, as well as several additional buildings on the Mis-
sissippi State University campus, and further research may yet
reveal that more Mississippi buildings were the product of his
talents. Of the identified Mississippi structures designed by
Hunt, however, Montgomery Hall appears to have been the ar-
chitect's first commission in the state, and its elaborate
exterior makes the building at once his most exuberant and
academic Mississippi building. As more information about
Reuben Harrison Hunt's work in Mississippi comes to light,
Montgomery Hall will continue to increase in architectural and
historical significance as a documented example of his work.

9. Major Bibliographical References (continued)

Gray, Elizabeth K. "Data to support nomination of Montgomery
Hall for listing in the National Register of Historical
Buildings [sic.]." Typescript, 1973. (Mrs. Gray's study
provided much of the information in the statements of sig-
nificance and physical appearance.)

Mayes, Edward. History of Education in Mississippi. Washington,
D. C.: Government Printing Office, 1899.

Mississippi Agricultural and Mechancial College. Biennial
Reports, 1898-1904. Mississippi Department of Archives and
History, Jackson.

Mississippi State Building Commission and Mississippi State Uni-
versity. "Report on Mississippi State University, Physical
Facilities." Building Commission of the State of Mississippil
and Participating Colleges. Reports on Physical Facilities,
Mississippi Colleges: Public and Private Institutions,
1967-68.

GPO 921.724




